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8 UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

9 FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
10
11 | DEREK TODD, No. 2:13-cv-0273 MCE AC PS
12 Plaintiff,
13 V. ORDER AND
14 | JOHN ELLIS, et al., FINDINGS & RECOMMENDATIONS
15 Defendants.
16
17 Plaintiff, proceeding in this action pro ggeviously requested thority pursuant to 28
18 | U.S.C. 8§ 1915 to proceed in forma pauperisis Tequest was granted on June 18, 2013. At the
19 | same time, plaintiff's complaint was dismisgadsuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure
20 | 8(a)(2) for failure to provide asrt and plain statement of the plige, and plaintiff was directec
21 | to file an amended complaint no longer tharpd@es. Plaintiff has now filed a first amended
22 | complaint with hundreds of pages of exks and a motion for leave to amend.
23 The federal in forma pauperis statute auttewifederal courts to dismiss a case if the
24 | action is legally “frivolous or mious,” fails to state a claimpon which relief may be granted,
25 | or seeks monetary relief from a defendahbws immune from suctelief. 28 U.S.C.
26 | 81915(e)(2). A claimis legally frivolous whendicks an arguable basis either in law or in fact.
27 | Neitzke v. Williams, 490 U.S. 319, 325 (198B)anklin v. Murphy, 745 F.2d 1221, 1227-28 (9th
28 | Cir. 1984). The court may, therefore, dismisdaam as frivolous where it is based on an
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indisputably meritless legal theooy where the factual contentions are clearly baseless. Neitzke,

490 U.S. at 327.
A complaint, or portion thereof, should only be dismissed for failure to state a claim
which relief may be granted if it appears beyondht that plaintiff can prove no set of facts in

support of the claim or claims that wouldidathim to relief. _Hishon v. King & Spalding, 467

U.S. 69, 73 (1984) (citing Conley v. Gibson, 35%. 41, 45-46 (1957)); Palmer v. Roosevelt
Lake Log Owners Ass’n, 651 F.2d 1289, 1294 (9th Cir. 1981). In reviewing a complaint uf

this standard, the court must aptas true the allegationstbe complaint in question, Hospital

Bldg. Co. v. Rex Hosp. Trustees, 425 U.S. 738,(18906), construe the gdding in the light

most favorable to the plaintiff, and resoli&doubts in the plaintiff's favor, Jenkins v.
McKeithen, 395 U.S. 411, 421 (1969).

A. Allegations in First Amended Complaint

In the first amended complaint, plaintidfings suit against a mber of individuals
associated with an ongoing state court chilstady proceeding: California Judge John Ellis,
attorney Elizabeth Anderson, Mediator Paul Landrum, Mediitanita Shoopman, Judicial
Performance Stephen Rockwell, and Cdilark Crystal Williams (Archer).

Plaintiff contends that on July 21, 2010, Juéidjes granted an eparte order depriving

plaintiff of his custody rights this son without holding a hearingrirst Am. Compl. (“FAC”) at

2. Using the ex parte court order, defendanlidkhs (Archer), the son’s mother, picked up the

child with a police escort. Id. at 3.

After plaintiff sought to have his custody riglreinstated, Judge Ellis ordered plaintiff
and Williams (Archer) to attend a mediation sassvith defendant Landrum. FAC at 3. After
the mediation, Landrum recommended that pii&is custody rights be terminated based on
Williams (Archer)’s allegedly baseless allegatidimst plaintiff suffered from a mental disorder
and that he abused the child. Id.

On September 21, 2010, a hearing was heldrédiadge Ellis. FAC at 3. Plaintiff
accuses his attorney, Elizabeth Arstm, of refusing to plead for plaintiff's rights at this heari

of having illegal communication with Judge Ellg)d of deliberately viaiting California law.
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Id. at 10-11. Following the haag, Judge Ellis adopted Landrusmecommendation. Id. at 3.
Plaintiff thereafter sought to regain custody & $on multiple times, but each time Judge Elli
denied plaintiff's requsts. _See id. at 4-7.

In early January 2011, after plaintiff’'s somr@awvay from the home of Williams (Archer
and returned to plaintiff, Judge Ellis ordd a second mediation session with defendant
Shoopman. FAC at 4. Shoopman, like Landrieapmmended that plaintiff's custody rights
terminated, also due to allegations of a mentdrdier and child abuse. Id. at 5. On March 2
2011, Judge Ellis again deprived plaintiff of @gst rights. _Id. Following another request by
plaintiff to have his custody righteinstated, Judge Ellis issugdive-year restraining order
against plaintiff forbidding any contact with his son. Id. Jugllje also denied plaintiff's
December 2011 request for visitation witis son on Christmas. Id. at 7.

Prior to the child custody trial, Judge EHBitegedly denied plairitis request to appear
telephonically, even though he had granted simdguests before. FAC at 6. Consequently,

plaintiff was not preserdt the trial. _Id.

Plaintiff filed numerous complaints agaidsidge Ellis with the Commission on Judicia]

Performance. FAC at 12. Plaintiff accuses ddéat Rockwell of conspiring with Judge Ellis
and Williams (Archer) to deprive plaintiff of his rights. Id.

B. Plaintiff's Claims and Relief Sought

Plaintiff brings suit for violations of multip state laws in connection with the child
custody hearings under the guise of an Equatietion violation pursuant to the Fourteenth
Amendment and a violation of the Americans witisabilities Act, 42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq.
Plaintiff also accuses Judge Ellis of violating Hue process rights by issuing an ex parte col
order and by denying plaintiffisequest to appearlégphonically at the child custody hearing.
Additionally, he accuses Judgdi&lof conspiring with Landrum, Shoopman, Anderson and
Williams (Archer) to deprive plaintiff of his cusdy rights. Moreover, he accuses Judge Ellis
conspiring with Williams (Archer) to deny plaifitof “his 2nd Amendment rights right to bear
arms because the Plaintiff was disabled.’stlya plaintiff accuses Judge Ellis of violating

plaintiff's First Amendment right to exercise medigion when he denied plaintiff visitation with
3
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his son on Christmas in 2011. Plainifeks damages and injunctive relief.
C. Discussion

1. Claims Against Judge Ellis

Insofar as plaintiff seeks damages from Juglys, the Court finds this defendant to be
absolutely immune from liabilt “Judges are immune from dageaactions for judicial acts
taken within the jurisdiction of #ir courts . . . Judicial immity applies however erroneous the
act may have been, and however injuriougsitonsequences it may have proved to the

plaintiff.” Ashelman v. Pope, 793 F.2d 1072, 107t (Gir. 1986). A judge can lose his or het

immunity when acting in clear albisee of jurisdiction, but one mugistinguish acts taken in errpr
or acts that are performed in excess of a jigdgethority (which remain absolutely immune)

from those acts taken in clear absence o$gliction. _Mireles v. Waco, 502 U.S. 9, 12-13 (1991)

(“If judicial immunity means aything, it means that a judgelMnot be deprived of immunity
because the action he took was in error . . . orimvascess of his authoyit’) Thus, for example,
in a case where a judge actuallglered the seizure of an indival by means of excessive force,
an act clearly in excess of higjld authority, he remained immubecause the order was giver] in

his capacity as a judge and not with the clearradesef jurisdiction._ld.; see also Ashelman, 793

F.2d at 1075 (“A judge lacks immunity where he acthanclear absence of all jurisdiction . . .|or
performs an act that is hjudicial in nature.”)

Here, the actions plaintiff complains of &tearly judicial acts. Furthermore, even
assumingarguendo that this defendant somehow erredoted in excess of his authority, he did
not act in clear absence of jurisdiction whendseied an ex parte onder denied plaintiff's
request to appear telephonicallyaatial. Accordingly, Judge Ellis immune from liability for

damages.

174

As to plaintiff's claim for injunctive reliefthe Court finds that it would be inappropriate

for a federal court to interfere in this famlbw matter, which plaintiff states remains ongoing

and active in state courSee e.g., Coats v. Woods, 819 F.2d 236, 237 (9th Cir. 1987) (no abuse

of discretion in district cour$’ abstention from hearing 8 1983 ntaiarising from a child custody

dispute pending in state copyrPeterson v. Babbitt, 708 F.285, 466 (9th Cir. 1983) (upholdin
4
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abstention by district court in disuinvolving father'svisitation rights).

2. Claims Against Mediators

Turning next to plaintiff's claims againsandrum and Shoopmanjtjdicial immunity is
not limited to judges. All those who perfojodge-like functions are immune from civil

damages liability.”_Ryan v. Bilby, 764 F.2825, 1328 n.4 (9th Cir. 1985); see also Wagsha

Foster, 28 F.3d 1249, 1252-54 (D.C. Cir. 1994) (mgdhat mediator for court’s alternative
dispute resolution program enjayabsolute quasi-judicial immunity to damages claims for

actions taken within the scope of official duties); PutmanateS8ar of California, 2010 WL

3070435, at *7 (C.D. Cal. June 25, 2010) (notirag tibsolute quasi-judicial immunity is
“properly extended to neutral third-parties their conduct in perfoning dispute resolution
services which are connected to the judiciakpss and involve eithét) the making of binding
decisions, (2) the making of findings or reconmai@&tions to the court or (3) the arbitration,
mediation, conciliation, evaluation other similar resolution gfending disputes”) (not reporte
in official reporter).

The Ninth Circuit has held that arbitratorgiag within the scope dheir authority are
immune from civil suit._Sacks v. Dietrich, 6633d 1065 (9th Cir. 2011). In an unpublished,

citable decision, the Ninth Circuit applied théitmal immunity to meliators. _Davenport v.
Winley, 314 Fed. Appx. 982 (9th Cir. 2009) (dissing § 1983 claim against a mediator base
on immunity). There is no meaningful distilon between a mediator and an arbitrator for
purposes of immunity.

In the first amended complaint, plaintifiaains that Landrum and Shoopman acted as

&N

but

mediators in order to prepare a report makingcommendation regarding custody and visitation.

These defendants were clearly acting pursuaatcourt order, and their recommendations we
integrally connected with the judicial proces® within the scope @heir duties. Thus,

plaintiff's claims against Landrum and Shooprhatust also be dismissed.

! Plaintiff has previously attertgd to bring suit against theseo defendants based on the san]
set of facts. See Todd v. Shoopman et?al2-cv-1768-JAM-GGH; ddd v. Landrum et al.,
2:12-cv-1770-LKK-KJN. The magistrate judgegive earlier cases both recommended dismi
(continued...)
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3. Claims Against “Judicial PBrmance” Stephen Rockwell

Plaintiff's allegations against Stephen Rockvee# too factually sparse to state a clain.

Other than accusing Rockwell in a conclusosshian of conspiring with other defendants to
violate plaintiff's rights, plaintiff has proffered no facthat would support a claim.

4, Claims Against Elizabeth Anderson

Plaintiff's claims against Elizabeth Ang®n also fail. Generally, he accuses this
defendant of refusing to plead fplaintiff's rights at a hearm of having illegal communication
with Judge Ellis, and of delibately violating California law.Without more, these bare
allegations do not state a claim.

5. Claims Against Crystal Williams (Archer)

Finally, plaintiff's first amended complaint names Crystal Williams (Archer), his son
mother, as a real party in intste To the extent plaintiffteempts to assert a claim under 42
U.S.C. § 1983 against Williams (Archer), thaiol should also be dismissed because plaintif

cannot plausibly allege that Williams (Archés)a state actor. Ball v. Rodgers, 492 F.3d 109/

1103 (9th Cir. 2007);_ Long v. County of Los deles, 442 F.3d 1178, 1185 (9th Cir. 2006) (“T

state a claim under 8§ 1983, a pldimnust allege two essential elemts: (1) that a right securec
by the Constitution or laws of the United Statess violated, and (2) théte alleged violation
was committed by a person acting unthe color of State law.”) (emphasis added). Furthern
an ADA claim under 42 U.S.C. § 12132, which relategublic entity dishility discrimination,
is not viable against Williams (Archer).

Based on the foregoing, the Court finds thairlff's first amended complaint must be
dismissed. The Court also notes that themging appears to be one of several frivolous
complaints that plaintiff has filed in theourt. See Todd v. Canby, 2:13-cv-1018 GEB AC
(examining plaintiff's filings in tle Eastern District of Californigince 2011). Recently, plaintif

was declared a vexatious litigant in this distri8ee id., ECF No. 5. In light of plaintiff's

of plaintiff's complaints with prejudice based thre same grounds that the Court finds dismis
warranted here. In both actions, the magdistpadges’ recommendations were adopted in full
and judgment entered accordingly.
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allegations in the instant case, as well as lsohy of filing frivolousactions containing many of

the same allegations and his status as a esalitigant, the Coumvill recommend that this

action be dismissed without leato amend pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1915(e)(2). Noll v. Carlson,

809 F.2d 1446, 1448 (9th Cir. 1987) (While the coudirarily would permit a pro se plaintiff t¢

o

amend, leave to amend should not be grantedenhappears amendment would be futile).
Accordingly, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED thataintiff’'s motion to amend the pleading
(ECF No. 9) is denied; and
IT IS HEREBY RECOMMENDED that this acin be dismissed witholgave to amend.

These findings and recommendations are submitted to the United States District Jydge

assigned to the case, pursuanthe® provisions of 28 U.S.C. 8 686(I). Within fourteen days
after being served with these findings aadommendations, any party may file written
objections with the court andrse a copy on all parties. Sualdocument should be captioned
“Objections to Magistrateudige’s Findings and Recommendas.” Any response to the
objections shall be filed and served within fexr days after service of the objections. The
parties are advised that failurefiie objections within the specéd time may waive the right to

appeal the District Coud’order._Martinez v. Yist, 951 F.2d 1153 (9th Cir. 1991).

DATED: July 1, 2014

m.r:_-—— %’?-L-
ALLISON CLAIRE
UNITED STATES MAGISTRATE JUDGE




